Community Development Plan





Toula Community, Neiafu District, Vava'u Island, May 18, 2015

Report No.: 020103

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PLAN

of

TOULA COMMUNITY

May, 2015

Partners













Prepared by;

Mainstreaming of Rural Development Innovation Tonga Trust, Olovaha Road, Fanga 'o Pilolevu, (P.O. Box 996) Nuku'alofa, KINGDOM OF TONGA

P: (676) 24 354 F: (676) 24 354

E: admin@morditonga.to W: http://www.morditonga.to

TABLE OF CONTENTS

MAP OF VAVA'U	4
SATELLITE PHOTO OF TOULA COMMUNITY	4
TOULA COMMUNITY BASELINE INFORMATION	5
SHEET 1A: WOMEN GROUP PRIORITY PROBLEMS IDENTIFIED IN 2015	9
SHEET 2A: WOMEN PROBLEMS PRIORITIZED ACCORDING TO 2015 ENVIRONMENT	10
SHEET 3A: WOMEN GROUP LISTED IN ORDER OF PRIORITY	10
SHEET 4A: WOMEN GROUP DEVELOPMENT PLAN	11
SHEET 1B: YOUTH GROUP PRIORITY PROBLEMS IDENTIFIED IN 2015	13
SHEET 2B: YOUTH PROBLEMS PRIORITIZED ACCORDING TO 2015 ENVIRONMENT	14
SHEET 3B: YOUTH GROUP LISTED IN ORDER OF PRIORITY	14
SHEET 4B: YOUTH GROUP DEVELOPMENT PLAN — TOULA COMMUNITY	15
SHEET 1C: MEN'S GROUP PRIORITY PROBLEMS IDENTIFIED IN 2015	17
SHEET 2C: MEN PROBLEMS PRIORITIZED ACCORDING TO 2015 ENVIRONMENT	18
SHEET 3C: MEN GROUP LISTED IN ORDER OF PRIORITY	18
SHEET 4C: MEN GROUP DEVELOPMENT PLAN	19
SHEET 5 - MERGING OF GDP PRIORITY PROBLEMS TO DETERMINE CDP PRIORITIES	20
SHEET 6: SUMMARY OF SET CDP PRIORITIES	21
SHEET 7: TOULA COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PLAN	22
SHEET 8: PARTICIPANTS LIST	25

MAP OF VAVA'U



SATELLITE PHOTO OF TOULA COMMUNITY



TOULA COMMUNITY BASELINE INFORMATION POPULATION BY SEX

Table: Sex by 5-year Age

<u>Group</u>

<u>O100p</u>	TONGA		TONGA Vava'u			N	leiafu Dist	tict	Toula			
						Femal			Femal	Tota	Mal	Femal
Age Group	Total	Male	Female	Total	Male	е	Total	Male	е	1	е	е
_		51,97	51,27	1492	755		577	289				
Total	103,252	9	3	2	9	7363	4	3	2881	411	204	207
less than 5 years	13,499	7,085	6,414	1906	999	907	737	379	358	46	22	24
5 - 9 years	12,873	6,671	6,202	1994	1088	906	727	392	335	57	30	27
10 - 14 years	12,085	6,361	5,724	1869	991	878	737	402	335	45	25	20
15 - 19 years	10,967	5,675	5,292	1563	777	786	619	300	319	36	21	15
20 - 24 years	8,229	4,130	4,099	972	467	505	405	188	217	37	18	19
25 - 29 years	7,590	3,575	4,015	937	444	493	374	181	193	35	13	22
30 - 34 years	6,411	3,094	3,317	807	384	423	320	140	180	18	10	8
35 - 39 years	5,755	2,783	2,972	816	396	420	301	142	159	14	2	12
40 - 44 years	5,753	2,889	2,864	869	443	426	330	164	166	15	7	8
45 - 49 years	4,582	2,368	2,214	668	342	326	268	146	122	24	13	11
50 - 54 years	3,717	1,796	1,921	559	274	285	221	110	111	26	15	11
55 - 59 years	3,159	1,522	1,637	479	234	245	201	91	110	17	7	10
60 - 64 years	2,528	1,220	1,308	446	222	224	158	81	77	10	5	5
65 - 69 years	2,143	1,010	1,133	336	173	163	116	60	56	14	10	4
70 - 74 years	1,725	836	889	287	135	152	111	52	59	5	1	4
75 - 79 years	1,128	520	608	217	105	112	65	31	34	7	3	4
80 - 84 years	686	285	401	117	49	68	50	21	29	3	1	2
85 - 89 years	314	119	195	63	29	34	25	9	16	2	1	1
90 - 94 years	67	24	43	10	5	5	6	3	3	0	0	0
95 - 99 years	23	5	18	7	2	5	3	1	2	0	0	0
, 100 + years	3	1	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Not Stated	15	10	5	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0

Table 2: Building Materials

Tuble 2. bollating materials	Total	V ανα'υ	Neiafu Distict	Toula
Walls	18,033	2,813	1,070	82
Poured concrete	782	116	49	2
Concrete block	5,503	883	393	32
Metal	648	98	28	5
Wood	11,004	1,705	596	43
Thatch	59	7	3	0
Other	37	4	1	0
Roof	18,033	2,813	1,070	82
Concrete	289	40	27	0
Metal	17,137	2,679	999	79
Wood	452	71	40	1
Thatch	135	18	3	1
Others	20	5	1	1
Floor	18,033	2,813	1,070	82
Concrete	14,181	1,994	802	54
Wood	3,533	772	247	22
Others	319	47	21	6

Table 3: Source of Water, Toilet Facility

	Total	Vava'u	Neiafu Distict	Toula
Drinking Water	18,033	2,813	1,070	82
Own cement	12,142	2,052	757	61
Neighbour	4,546	721	290	19
Bottled water	651	11	7	0
Boiled water	102	6	4	0
Piped water supply	567	20	11	2
Others	25	3	1	0
Other Source of Water	18,033	2,813	1,070	82
Piped water supply	16,014	2,386	1,006	77
Cement or other tank	1,742	399	50	4
Own well	151	4	1	0
Others	126	24	13	1
Solar	1,221	147	103	33
Toilet	18,010	2,810	1,070	82
Toilet Facility	18,033	2,813	1,070	82
Flush toilet	13,642	1,766	889	71
Manual flush	1,870	95	40	1
Pit	2,473	944	141	10
Others	48	8	0	0

Table 4: Household Asset

Motor Vehicle	Total	V ανα'υ	Neiafu Distict	Toula
Total	18,033	2,813	1,070	82
Motor vehicle	9,759	1,248	586	43
Motor bike	695	102	55	6
Refrigerator	12,016	1,467	689	56
Washing machine	11,879	1,590	684	54
TV screen	13,965	1,944	854	69
Video player	12,094	1,834	785	67
Computer	4,508	446	286	28
Radio	14,465	2,177	826	57
Telephone landline	8,141	895	550	34
Telephone mobile	16,907	2,637	1,011	75
Boat	848	253	127	13

Table: 5 Source of Lighting and Cooking Fuel

	Total	V ανα'υ	Neiafu Distict	Toula
Lighting	18,033	2,813	1,070	82
Electicity main supply	15,963	2,366	965	73
Electricity generator	172	22	8	0
Kerosene / Benzene	1,012	169	55	3
Solar	487	112	18	4
Others	399	144	24	2
Cooking	18,033	2,813	1,070	82
Electricity main supply	640	91	30	0
Gas	9,065	1,021	615	36
Kerosene	128	15	7	0
Firewood collected	8,082	1,675	414	44
Firewood bought	90	8	3	1
Others	28	3	1	1

Table 6: Religious

Religious	TONGA	Vava'u	Neiafu Distict	Toula
Total	103,043	14,884	5,737	408
Free Wesleyan Church (FWC)	36,592	5,301	1,851	91
Roman Catholic (RC)	15,441	1,775	1,101	70
Latter Day Saint (LDS)	18,554	2,762	920	52
Free Church of Tonga (FCOT)	11,863	2,443	635	47
Church of Tonga (COT)	6,935	847	308	55
Tokaikolo / Maamafo'ou	2,533	354	107	28
Anglican Church (AC)	728	35	30	3
Seventh Day Adventist (SDA)	2,331	239	148	1
Assembly of God (AOD)	2,602	276	98	7
Constitutional Church of Tonga (CCOT)	961	277	198	2
Gospel Church	236	16	1	0
Bahai Faith	777	145	58	0
Hindus	100	2	2	0
Islam	24	0	0	0
Buddhist	183	2	2	0
The Salvation Army	247	1	1	0
Jehovah's Witnesses	462	55	18	0
Other Pentecostal Denomination (all Pentecostal Churches excludes AOG)	1,034	198	138	30
No religious affiliation	288	62	53	2
Refuse to answer	34	3	0	0
Others	877	81	58	20
Not Stated	241	10	10	0

Table 7: Waste Disposal, Source of Income, Remittances and Internet

			Neiafu	
	TONGA	Vava'u	Distict	Toula
Waste Disposal	18,033	2,813	1,070	82
Burn	10,484	2,421	748	46
Bury	630	50	17	1
Lagoon etc	297	42	34	0
Collection service	6,172	266	253	32
Decomposed	427	30	14	3
Others	23	4	4	0
Main Source of Income	18,033	2,813	1,070	82
Wages and Salaries	7,866	895	540	39
Ow business	1,132	166	112	12
Sale own products	4,623	1,027	158	8
Land lease	32	8	5	2
House rent	102	14	11	2
Remittances	2,705	367	144	3
Pension allowance	200	30	19	4
No strong income	1,270	286	71	12
Other sources	103	20	10	0
Remittances	18,033	2,813	1,070	82
Yes - within Tonga	882	209	48	1
Yes - outside Tonga	9,999	1,310	550	28
Yes - both within and outside Tong	4,112	806	267	32
No - never receive any remittances	3,039	487	205	21
Not Stated	1	1	0	0
How often	14,994	2,326	865	61

Every 2 weeks	2,051	243	101	5
Every month	3,627	526	207	14
Every 2 - 3 months	3,005	608	240	15
Twice a year	1,051	229	91	15
Once a year	332	62	24	5
Occasionally	4,927	657	202	7
Not Stated	1	1	0	0
Internet at home	1,683	147	104	15
Internet on mobile phone internet	1,366	126	39	5

Table 8: Education

	Total	Vava'u	Neiafu Distict	Toula
Attending School	Total	Vava u	סוטוונו	Toolu
Total	33,344	4,961	1.040	128
Yes, full time	33,344 32,772	4,961 4,916	1,942 1,912	128
·				
Yes, part time	572	45	30	0
Highest Level Completed	00.540	10.070	r 000	2/0
Total	89,548	12,978	5,000	362
Never been to school	1,392	219	90	6
Pre-school	584	98	31	1
Primary school	21,922	3,495	1,205	88
Secondary school	55,152	8,203	3,109	220
Technical/Vocational	7,023	678	379	31
University	3,400	275	177	16
Others	75	10	9	0
Smoking				
Total	89,548	12,978	5,000	362
Smoking daily	17,281	2,358	829	56
Not Smoking daily	72,267	10,620	4,171	306
Employment Status				
Total	33,422	5,485	1,820	103
Employee - Govt	4,564	478	253	12
Employedd - Quasi Govt	1,320	108	76	1
Employee Private Employer	8,714	951	600	41
Employer	343	48	34	7
Self Employed	8,740	1,572	388	22
Unpaid Family worker	9,741	2,328	469	20
Occupation				
Total	33,422	5,485	1,820	103
Armed forces occupations	445	15	5	0
Managers	1,079	167	111	15
Professionals	3,881	503	251	11
Technicians and associate professionals	1,588	140	87	7
Clerical support workers	1,765	137	90	7
Service and sales workers	3,380	376	259	18
Skilled agricultural forestry and fishery workers	9,470	2,022	400	18
Craft and related trades workers	9,662	1,900	468	16
Plant and machine operators and assemblers	908	74	51	2
Elementary occupations	1,244	151	98	9

SHEET 1A: WOMEN GROUP PRIORITY PROBLEMS IDENTIFIED IN 2015

W	WOMEN GROUP PRIORITY PROBLEMS IDENTIFIED IN 2015						
1.	Si'i tanaki'anga vai (Small water lens)						
2.	Maumau fanga monumanu (Damage caused by livestock)						
3.	'Ikai sai hala ngove mo kolo (Poor public road construction and road to farm)						
4.	Si'i maama hala (Lack of street lights)						
5.	Lahi ta'e fakafiemalie ngaahi peito (Increased unsatisfactory kitchen standard)						

SHEET 2A: WOMEN PROBLEMS PRIORITIZED ACCORDING TO 2015 ENVIRONMENT

PR	IORITY	Pri- 1	Pri- 2	Pri- 3	Pri- 4	Pri- 5	Score	Rank
1.	Si'i tanaki'anga vai (Small water lens)		1	1	1	1	4	1
2.	Maumau fanga monumanu (Damage caused by livestock)			2	2	2	3	2
3.	'Ikai sai hala ngove mo kolo (Poor public road construction and road to farm)				4	5	0	5
4.	Si'i maama hala (Lack of street lights)					4	2	3
5.	Lahi ta'e fakafiemalie NGAAHI PEITO (Increased unsatisfactory kitchen standard)						1	4

SHEET 3A: WOMEN GROUP LISTED IN ORDER OF PRIORITY

LIST	LIST OF PROBLEMS ALREADY PRIORITISE							
1.	Si'i tanaki'anga vai (small water lens)							
2.	Maumau fanga monumanu (damage caused by livestock)							
3.	Si'i maama hala (lack of street lights)							
4.	Lahi ta'e fakafiemalie ngaahi peito (increased unsatisfactory kitchen standard)							
5.	Ikai sai hala ngove mo kolo (poor public road construction and road to farm)							

SHEET 4A: WOMEN GROUP DEVELOPMENT PLAN

Lisi palopalema fakahokohoko Ngaahi me'a 'oku ne Sivisivi'l 'o e fakatamaki (<i>Risk analysis</i>)					~ IV	Ngaahi Solova'anga	Ngaahi Me'a 'e hoko	Ngaahi Ola	Partners
(List of problem prioritized)	fakatupuga <i>(Causes)</i>	Fakatamaki e ala hoko	L	C	F	_ ,	(Possible Output)	(Possible Outcome)	(Kavngangave)
1. Si'i tanaki'anga vai (Small water lens)	Si'i ivi fakapa'anga (Lack of funds) Lahi maumau (Increased damages) Fakatamulu hono ngaahi (Water lens not properly built) Mama he lahi la'a (Leak due to increased sun exposure)	■ Fieinua (Community thirsty) ■ Mahmahaki (Unhealthy community) ■ Mohe'uli (Lack proper bath) ■ 'uli vala (Dirty unwashed clothes) ■ Mate (Mortality)	3	3	3	Feinga pa'anga (Raise funds) Kole tokoni (Seek assistance) Monomono ngaahi sima mama (Repair broken cement water tanks) Kumi ngaahi tangike pelesitiki (Buy plastic water tanks)	Ma'u pa'anga (Received funds) Ma'u tokoni (Received assistance) Ma'u sima kuo 'osi monomono (Secured repaired cement water tanks) Ma'u ngaahi tangike pelesitiki (Secured plastic water tanks)	Fiemalie kakai (Community satisfied) Mo'vi lelei ange kakai kolo (Healthy community) Ma'a e vala fanau (Clean clothes) Ma'a ange vai inu (Clean drinking water) Mo'ui lelei ngoue moe fanga monumanu (Healthy crop production and livestock)	MORDI (Mainstreaming of Rural Development Innovation) Fakafofonga Falealea (Parliament representative) Pule fakavahe (District officer) 'Ofisakolo (Town officer) Kakai kolo (Community) Kainga mei muli (Overseas relatives)
2. Maumau fanga monumanu (Damage caused by livestock)	Si'i ivi fakapa'anga (Lack of funds) 'Ikai ha 'a (No livestock fence) Lahi fakataka monumanu (Increased livestock roaming) Fu'u tokolahi (Increased number of livestock) Fiekaia fanga manu (Livestock go hungry)	"Maumau ngoue'anga (Damages farms) "Maumau e hala pule'anga (Damaged public roads) "'Uli e 'atakai (Dirty environment) "Matamata kovi e kolo (Community is untidy and unappealing) "Honge (Lack of staple foods in community) "Mahamahaki kakai (Unhealthy community)	3	3	3	Ngaahi ha 'a (Fix livestock fence) Feinga pa'anga (Raise funds) Kole tokoni (Seek assistance) Fakamalohi'i lao kihe fanga monumanu (Enforce policies regarding livestock)	'I ai ngaahi 'a (Secured livestock fence) Ma'u pa'anga (Received funds) Ma'u tokoni (Received assistance) 'Iai lao kuo ngaue lelei (Secured effective working policies)	Ma'a 'atakai (Clean environment) Matamata lelei kolo (attractive looking community) Mo'ui lelei kakai (Healthy community) Lahi ngoue (Increased crop production) Lahi ngoue kihe maketi (Increased crops for sales at market) Lelei tu'unga fakapa'anga kakai (Improved financial status)	MORDI (Mainstreaming of Rural Development Innovation) Potunglaue Ngoue Fakafofonga Falealea (Parliament representative) 'Ofisakolo (Town officer)
3. Si'i maama hala (Lack of street lights)	Si'i maama hala (Lack street lights) Si'i ivi fakapa'anga (Lack of funds) 'Ikai ha maama (No street lights) 'Ikai ha tokoni (No assistance) Si'i tokanga 'a e Potungaue 'Uhila (Electricity power board lack paying attention to regular check ups on street lights)	 Lahi e tevolo (Increased fear of evil spirits) Fakapo'uli e kolo (Darkness in the community) Kovi fefononga'aki (Poor means of transportation) 'Ikai malu longa'ifanau fononga holo he po'uli (Children not safe traveling at night in the darkness) Lahi kaiha'a (Increased theft rate) 	3	3	3	Feinga pa'anga (Raise funds) Kole tokoni (Seek assistance) Ngaue fakataha e kolo (Community work together) Fokotu'u ha maama hala (Install street lights)	Ma'u pa'anga (Received funds) Ma'u tokoni (Received assistance) 'lai kolo ngaue fakataha (Secured community working together) 'lai maama hala (Secured street lights)	Malu e Fonua (Safe community) Malu e fanau (Children are safe) 'Ikai toe ilifia tevolo kakai (People not scared of evil spirits anymore) Si'i hoko ha fakatamaki kihe longa'ifanau (Less danger and harm occurring to children) Si'i kaiha'a (Less theft) Lelei fefononga'aki (Improved means of transportation)	- MORDI (Mainstreaming of Rural Development Innovation) - 'Ofisakolo (Town officer) - Pule Fakavahe (District officer)
4. Lahi ta'e fakafiemalie ngaahi peito (Increased unsatisfactory kitchen standard)	 Si'i ivi fakapa'anga (Lack of funds) Mamafa naunau falekoloa (Store products too costly) 'Ikai ha peito lelei (Poor kitchen standards) Tutulu (Kitchen roof leaks) Avaava (Kitchen has holes in walls) Peito palepale pe (Tent like kitchen) 	'Uli me'a tokoni hono ngaohi (Food made in kitchen is unclean) Mahamahaki kihe kakai (Unhealthy community) 'Uheina la'aina mo efua kau feime'atokoni (Cooks suffer cooking in therain and sun) Velahia (Hot from exposure to harsh heat and sun) Maumau'i fanga monumanu me'akai mo 'uli'i me'a ngaahi	3	3	3	Feinga pa'anga (Raise funds) Kole tokoni (Seek assistance) Ngave fakataha kolo (Community working together) Langa ha peito fakalakalaka (Build proper kitchen)	Ma'u pa'anga (Received funds) Ma'u tokoni (Received assistance) 'lai kolo ngaue fakataha (Secured community working together) 'lai peito fakalakalaka (Secured improved standard kitchen)	Ma'a feime'atokoni (Clean cooking area) Mo'uilelei kakai (Healthy community) Malu mo hao kau feime'atokoni meihe la'a 'uha moe 'ahuina (People safe and secure from cooking in the rain and sun) Malu me'atokoni moe me'a ngaahi kai meihe fanga	 MORDI (Mainstreaming of Rural Development Innovation) 'Ofisakolo (Town officer) Fakafofonga Falealea (Parliament representative)

		kai (Livestock damage food and dirty food making)						monumanu (Food safe from livestock and clean cooking area)	
5. 'Ikai sai hala ngove mo kolo (Poor public road construction and road to farm)	 Lahi 'uha (Increased rain) Si'i ivi fakapa'anga (Lack of funds) 'Ikai ha me'anaue (Lack tools and equipment) Te'eki tanu fakalelei mo valita (Road not yet gravel and tar sealed) 	Tokakovi (Rocky road) Honge (Lack of staple food) Kovi fefononga'aki (Poor means of transportation) Maumau vave me'alele (Causes damage to car) Honge Fonua (Lack of staple food in community) Si'i ngoue (Lack crop) Kovi maketi (Bad busness at market)	3	3	3	 Tanu e hala pea valita (Gravel and tar seal roads) Feinga pa'anga (Raise funds) Kole tokoni (Seek assistance) Fakatau me'a ngaue (Buy tools and supplies) 	"'lai tokoni <i>(Secured assistance)</i>	Sai e hala (Betterand improved road construction) Fiemalie kakai fefononga'aki (People able to travel with ease) Tolonga ngaahi me'alele (Cars last longer) Faka'ofo'ofa kolo (Clean and beautiful community) Lahi ngoue 'oku to (Increased crops planted) Lelei maketi (Improved market) Lelei ange tu'unga fakapa'anga ngaahi family (Improved financial status)	MORDI (Mainstreaming of Rural Development Innovation) MOI (Ministry of Infrastructure) Kainga muli (Overseas relatives) Ofisakolo (Town officer) Pule fakavahe (District officer)

SHEET 1B: YOUTH GROUP PRIORITY PROBLEMS IDENTIFIED IN 2015

YO	UTH GROUP PRIORITY PROBLEMS IDENTIFIED IN 2015
1.	'Ikai ha initaneti moe laipeli fakakolo (NO INTERNET AND LIBRARY FOR COMMUNITY)
2.	'Ikai naunau sipoti (NO SPORTS EQUIPMENT AND GEAR)
3.	Vaoa kolo (COMMUNITY HAVE OVER GROWN GRASS AND WEED)
4.	Maumau fanga monumanu (DAMAGES CAUSED LIVESTOCK)
5.	Si'i me'a fononga kihe ako (Lack of transportation to school)

SHEET 2B: YOUTH PROBLEMS PRIORITIZED ACCORDING TO 2015 ENVIRONMENT

PRI	ORITY	1	2	3	4	5	Score	Rank
1.	'Ikai ha initaneti moe laipeli fakakolo (no internet and library for community)		2	1	1	1	3	2
2.	'Ikai naunau sipoti (no sports equipment and gear)			2	2	2	4	1
3.	Vaoa kolo (community have over grown grass and weed)				4	3	1	4
4.	Maumau fanga monumanu (damages caused livestock)					5	1	5
5.	Si'i me'a fononga kihe ako (Lack of transportation to school)						1	3

SHEET 3B: YOUTH GROUP LISTED IN ORDER OF PRIORITY

LIS	T OF PROBLEMS ALREADY PRIORITISE
1.	'Ikai naunau sipoti (No sports equipment and gear)
2.	'Ikai ha initaneti moe laipeli fakakolo (No internet and library for community)
3.	Si'i me'a fononga kihe ako (Lack of transportation to school)
4.	Vaoa kolo (Community have over grown grass and weed)
5.	Maumau fanga monumanu (Damages caused livestock)

SHEET 4B: YOUTH GROUP DEVELOPMENT PLAN - TOULA COMMUNITY

LISI PALOPALEMA						NGAAHI SOLOVA'ANGA NGAAHI ME'A 'E HOKO NGAAHI OLA			
(List of problem prioritized)	FAKATUPUGA (Causes)	Fakatamaki e ala hoko		<u> </u>	(Solutions)	(Possible Output)	(Possible Outcome)	KAUNGA NGAUE (Partners)	
1. 'Ikai naunau sipoti <i>(No sports equipment and gear)</i>	Si'i ivi fakapa'anga/Lack of funds) 'Ikai ha taukei fe'unga/Lack proper experience) Mamfa koloa/Products too costly) Vaivai komiti/Weak sports committee) 'Ikai ngaue fakataha kolo/Community not working together)	Lavea (Injuries) Motuhia taleniti/Lack sport skills) Mahamahaki kakai(Unhealthy community) Lahi 'alu to'utupu (Too many youth leaving) Fakakina he kolo(Youth causing nuisance in community)	3 :	3 3	Kumi naunau(Buy sports gear and equipment) Ngaue fakataha kolo(Community work together) Kole tokoni (Seek assistance) Feinga pa'anga(Raise funds) Fakamalohi'i komiti ke longomo'ui(Encourage proactive sports committee)	Ma'u pa'anga/Receive funds) Ma'u naunau/Receive sports gear and equipment) Ma'u tokoni (Received assistance) 'lai kolo ngaue fakataha/Secureda community that works together) 'lai komiti ngaue longomo'ui/Secured a proactive sports committee)	Mo'ui lelei kolo(Healthy community) Faingamalie to'utupu ki muli(Youth have opportunity to play sports in overseas) Lelei taleniti fanau (Improved sports talent) Tu'umalie kakai(Wealthy community) Lelei tu'unga faka'ekonomika(Improved economic status)	Folau'eve'eva(Tourism) MORDI(Mainstreaming of Rural Development Innovation) TASA(Tonga Amateur Sports Association) FIFA(Federation Internationale football Association) MIA(Ministry of Internal Affairs) Fakafofonga falealea(Parliament representative) TNYC(Tonga National Youth Congress)	
2. 'Ikai ha initaneti moe laipeli fakakolo <i>(No</i> <i>internet and library for</i> <i>community)</i>	Mamafa naunau/Expensive equipment) Si'i ivi fakapa'anga/Lack of funds) 'tkai ha tokoni/Lack of assistance) 'tkai ha feitu'u lelei/Lack proper location for internet and library)	Lahi fakamole(Increased spenditure on internet and books) Tomui IA fanau(Students hand in late assignments) Kovi fekumi 'a e fanau (Students cannot do their assisgnment research properly) Uesia 'enau ako(Students studies are affected)	3	3 3	 Feinga pa'anga/Raise funds) Kole tokoni /Seek assistance) Kumi naunau laipeli/Buy library equipment) Kumi naunau internet/Buy internet equipment) Fokotu'u laipeli mo initaneti (Establish library and internet for community to use) 	'lai pa'anga/Secured funds) Ma'u tokoni/Received assistance) Ma'u naunau laipeli mo internet (Received library and internet equipment)	Poto mo lahi 'ilo (Gain more knowledge and understanding) Faignogua ako fanau (Studies made more accessible for students) Si'i fakamole(Less spending) Faingofua fetu'utaki(Communicatin made more accessable) Lelei ange ako fanau(Students improve in their studies) Leleiange kaha'u e fanau(Students have ensured bright future)	TCC/Tonga Communication Cooperation) MORDI ((Mainstreaming of Rural Development Innovation) CoE(Office Equipment) Fakafofonga falealea(Parliament representative) Potungaue Ako (Ministry of Education) AusAid(New Zealand Aid) NZAid(New Zealand Aid)	
3. Si'i me'a fononga kihe ako (Lack of transportation to school)	Si'i ivi fakapa'anga/Lack of funds) Mamafa/Too costly) 'Ikai matauhi lelei pasi taimini(Not taking proper care of bus) Motu'a pasi(Old bus) Vaivai pe komiti sikolasipi/Weak scholarship committee)	Tomui fanau kihe ako(Students suffer being late to school) Lahi e li'aki ako(Increased rate of students staying from school) Lahi e ngaue mo'ua(Increased number of students doing detension) Tuli e fanau he ako(Students get expelled from school) Mahamahaki(Unhealthy community) Mate fanau(Youth mortality)	3	3 3	 Feinga pa'anga/Raise funds) Ngaue fakataha kolo(Community working together) Kole tokoni(Seek assistance) Kumi pasi fo'ou(Buy new bus) Sevesi 'ae pasi motu'a(Service old bus) 	Ma'u pa'anga/Received funds) Ma'u tokoni/Received assistance) Ma'u pasi ako/Received new school bus) 'lai pasi kuo sevesi lelei/Secured bus that has been properly serviced)	Leleiange ako fanau (Students improve in their studies) Ma'u honau kaha'u lelei (Receive better future) Tu'umalie ngaahi famili (Wealthy families) Si'iange fakakina (Less trouble and nuisance caused) Lelei 'enau ma'u ako (Improved school attendance) Ola lelei ai pe ako 'ae fanau (Better and improved school results)	Super Cheap/Super Cheap) Youth(Youth) Pule'anga(Government) Kakai kolo(Community) Kainga 'i muli(Overseas relatives) 'Ofisak(olo(Town officer)	

4. Vaoa kolo (Community have over grown grass and weed)	 'Ikai ha misni kosi mome'angaue/lack lawn mower and other equipment to cut grass) Si'i ivi fakapa'anga/Lack of funds) Mamafa koloa/Equipment too costly) Lahi 'api 'oku li'aki/Land allotments abandoned) 	"Uli 'atakai/Dirty environment) Namua(Mosquitos) Mahamahaki kakai/Unhealthy community) 'Ikai toe manakoa 'ehe folau'eve'eva(Becomes unpopular with tourists)	3 :	3 2	 Kole tokoni misini kosi mo palau pea moe kini/Seek assistance for lawn mower and tractor) 	Ma'u kolo ngaue fakataha/Secure community working together) 'lai misini kosi mo me'angaue/Secured lawn mower and other grass cutting equipment) 'lai pa'anga/Received funds) 'lai tokoni palau mo kini/Secured tractor)	 Faka'ofo'ofa kolo<i>(Clean and beautiful community)</i> Mo'uilelei kakai<i>(Healthy community)</i> Manakoa 'ehe folau'eve'eva<i>(Popular with the tourists)</i> Faingofua mo vaveange ngaue<i>(Easy and fast for work or farming)</i> 	 PTH/Pacific Timber and Hardware) MORDI/Mainstreaming of Rural Development Innovation) Fakafofonga falealea(Parliament representative) 'Atakai(Environment) Kakai kolo(Community) Civil Society
5. Maumau fanga monumanu (Damages caused livestock)	'Ikai ke fafanga/Not feeding livestock) 'Ikai ha 'a lelei/Lack proper livestock fence) Fakataka monumanu/Free livestock roaming) 'Ikai ha maea ke nono'o 'aki/Lack rope to tie livestock) Fu'u tokolahi pe/Too many livestock)	Maumau e ngoue/Crops damaged) Honge e kolo/Community lack staple food) Fiekaia kakai/Hungry community) 'Uli 'atakai/Dirty environment) Palaku kihe kau 'a'ahi/Untidy and unclean for village inspection) Mahamahaki kakai kolo/Unhealthy community)	3 :	3 2	 Ngaue fakataha kolo/Community working together) Ha'i fanga monumanu/Tie up livestock to post) Kumi ha maea lelei/Buy strong rope to tie livestock) Ngaahi ha 'a lelei/Fix fence for livestock) Fakatokosi'i fanga monumanu/Lessen livestock) 'Aa'i 'u 'api kolo/Build fence for town allotment) Kole tokoni uaea 'a/Seek assistance for fence wire) Feinga pa'anga/Raise funds) 	"lai kolo ngaue fakataha/Secured community working together) "lai fanga monumanu 'oku ha'i lelei/Secured livestock propery tied up) "lai maea ke nono'o 'aki/Secured propertools and equipment to tie up livestock) "lai ngaahi 'a lelei/Secured strong and stirdy livestock fence) "lai fanga monumanu kuo fakatokosi'l/Secured livestock that has been lessened) "lai ngaahi 'a 'api kolo/Secured fence for town allotment) "lai tokoni uaea/Secured assistance for fence wire) Ma'u pa'anga/Received funds)	Faka'ofo'ofa ange kolo(Beautiful community) Ma'a kihe 'a'ahi(Clean for village inspection) Leleiange ngoue(Improved crop production) Lahi ngoue 'oku too(Increased crop production) Lelei 'ae maketi(Improved market) Lahi pa'anga 'a e famili (Families financial status improved) Si'i ha toe honge(People experience less drought of food) Malu fakame'atokoni 'a e ngaahi famili(Families food safe from livestock)	 'Ofisakolo/Town officer) MAFFF (Ministry of Agriculture Food Fisheries and Forestry) Kolo (Community) PTH (Pacific Timber and Hardware) Tonga Trust (Tonga Trust)

SHEET 1C: MEN'S GROUP PRIORITY PROBLEMS IDENTIFIED IN 2015

MEN'S GROUP PRIORITY PROBLEMS IDENTIFIED IN 2015 1. Maumau fangamonumanu he ngaahi ngove'anga moe kolo (Livestock damage bush allotments) 2. Si'isi'i pea maumau tanaki'anga vai inu (sima vai) (Water filters damaged and lack of drinking water) 3. 'Ikai ha me'angave fakangove (palau mo naunau) (Lack of farming tools and equipment-tractor) 4. 'Ikai sai tu'unga 'oe ngaahi peito lolotonga (Poor standard of kitchen) 5. 'Ikai lelei 'ae ngaahi toileti tonga (Poor and unhygienic state of pit toilets)

SHEET 2C: MEN PROBLEMS PRIORITIZED ACCORDING TO 2015 ENVIRONMENT

PR	IORITY	Pri- 1	Pri- 2	Pri- 3	Pri- 4	Pri- 5	Score	Rank
1.	Maumau fangamonumanu he ngaahi ngoue'anga moe kolo (Livestock damage bush allotments)		1	1	1	1	4	1
2.	Si'isi'i pea maumau tanaki'anga vai inu (sima vai) (Water filters damaged and lack of drinking water)			3	4	2	1	4
3.	'ikai ha me'angave fakangove (palav mo navnav) (Lack of farming tools and eqvipment- tractor)				3	3	3	2
4.	ʻikai sai tu'unga ʻoe ngaahi peito lolotonga <i>(Poor standard of kitchen)</i>					5	1	3
5.	'Ikai lelei 'ae ngaahi toileti tonga (Poor and unhygienic state of pit toilets)						1	5

SHEET 3C: MEN GROUP LISTED IN ORDER OF PRIORITY

LIS	T OF PROBLEMS ALREADY PRIORITISE
1.	Maumau fangamonumanu he ngaahi ngoue'anga moe kolo (livestock damage bush allotments)
2.	'Ikai ha me'angave fakangove (palav mo navnav) (lack of farming tools and eqvipment-tractor)
3.	'Ikai sai tu'unga 'oe ngaahi peito lolotonga (lack of farming tools and equipment-tractor)
4.	Si'isi'i pea maumau tanaki'anga vai inu (sima vai) (water filters damaged and lack of drinking water)
5.	'Ikai lelei 'ae ngaahi toileti tonga (poor and unhygienic state of pit toilets)

SHEET 4C: MEN GROUP DEVELOPMENT PLAN

Lisi palopalema fakahokohoko Ngaahi me'a 'oku ne Sivisivi'l 'o e fakatamaki (<i>Risk analysis</i>)					Ngaahi Solova'anga	Ngaahi Me'a 'e hoko	Ngaahi Ola	Partners	
(List of problem prioritized)	fakatupuga <i>(Causes)</i>	Fakatamaki e ala hoko	L	С	R	(Solutions)	(Possible Output)	(Possible Outcome)	(Kaungangaue)
Maumau fangamonumanu he ngaahi ngove'anga moe kolo/ <i>Livestock damage bush</i> <i>allotments)</i>	 'Ikai ha 'a ngove mo 'a puaka<i>(Stealing of crops and pig fences)</i> Hala mo e maea<i>(Lack of rope)</i> Si'isi'i ivi fakapa'anga<i>(Lack of funds)</i> 	 Honge(Lack of staple foods) Kaiha'a(Theft) Fiekaia e ngaahi famili(Families go hungry) To lalo e tu'unga fakapa'anga ngaahi famili(Families financial status decreased) Ke 'a e kakai(Quarrels amongst the people of the community) 	3	3	3	■ Ngaahi 'a puaka moe pulu/Fix fence for pig and cow) ■ Feinga pa'anga/Raise funds) ■ Kole tokoni/Seek assistance) ■ Ngaue fakataha kakai kolo/Community working together)	Ma'u 'a puaka moe 'a pulu/Received fence for pig and cow) Ma'u pa'anga/Received funds) Ma'u tokoni/Received assistance) 'lai kolo ngaue fakataha/Secured community working together)	Mahu e me'a tokoni (Abundance of staple food) 'Ikai toe 'iai ha kaiha'a (Less problem of theft) Lahi e fu'u ngoue 'oku too (Increased crops planted) Makona e ngaahi famili (Families are well fed and full) Lelei tu'unga faka'ekonomika e kolo (Community economic state improved)	MORDI (Mainstreaming of Rural Development Innovation) MAFFF (Ministry of Agriculture Faod Fisheries and Forestry) UN (United Nation) PTH (Pacific Timber and Hardware) TNCC Olisakolo (Town officer)
2. 'ikai ha me'angaue fakangoue (palau mo naunau) <i>(Lack of</i> farming tools and equipment- tractor)	Si'isi'i ivi fakapa'anga(Lack of funds) 'Ikai ha palau mo naunau(Lack of tractor and other farming tool and equipment)	Si'i ngove <i>(Lack of crop)</i> Si'i ma'v'anga pa'anga <i>(Lack source of income)</i> Honge <i>(Lack of staple foods)</i> Fiekaia <i>(Community go hungry)</i>	3	3	3	Kole ha tokoni <i>(Seek assistance)</i> Feinga pa'anga <i>(Raise funds)</i> Ngaue fakataha e kolo <i>(Community working together)</i> Fakatau ha palau moha naunau (taulani) <i>(Buy tractor and similar farming equipment)</i>	Ma'u tokoni(Received assistance) Ma'u pa'anga(Received funds) 'lai kolo ngaue fakataha(Secured community working together) 'lai palau mo naunau mo taulani(Secured farming equipment and trailor)	Lahi e ngove(Increased crop production) Sai tu'unga fakapa'anga(Improved financial status) Ma'ama'a e totongi palau(Tractor payment iis affordable)	■ MORDI(Mainstreaming of Rural Development Innovation) ■ UN(United Nation) ■ AusAid(Australian Aid) ■ Kakai kolo(Community) ■ 'Ofisakolo (Town officer)
3. 'ikai sai tu'unga 'oe ngaahi peito lolotonga/ <i>Lack of farming tools</i> and equipment-tractor)	 Si'i ivi fakapa'anga/Lack of funds) Lahi fakatamaki fakaenatula/Increased natural disasters) Motu'a e kapa/Tin roof is old) 	Mahamahaki kakai (Unhealthy community) Mate (Mortality) 'Uli me'atokoni (Unclean process of making food) Faingata'a e feime'atokoni (Making food is difficult)	3	3	3	■ Kole tokoni <i>(Seek assistance)</i> ■ Feinga pa'anga <i>(Raise funds)</i> ■ Ngaue fakataha kolo <i>(Community work together)</i> ■ Langa ha peito palangi <i>(Build modern kitchen)</i>	 Ma'u e tokoni/Received assistance) Ma'u pa'anga/Received funds) 'lai kolo ngaue fakataha/Received community working together) Ma'u peito lolotonga/Mordern kitchen built) 	Mo'uilelei ange kakai(Healthy community) Ma'a 'atakai(Clean environment) Faingofua feime'atokoni(Easier to cook and make food) 'tlkai toe mole ha mo'ui(No more loss of lives) Ma'a me'atokoni(Food is clean)	MORDI/Mainstreaming of Rural Development Innovation) Tonga Trust (Tonga Trust) TNCC PTH/Pacific Timber and Hardware) MIA/Ministry of Internal Affairs)
4. Si'isi'i pea maumau tanaki'anga vai inu (sima vai) <i>(Water filters</i> damaged and lack of drinking water)	 Hala sima ngaahi 'api/Some homes have no cement water tanks) Motu'a ngaahi sima vai/Old cement water tanks) Mafahifahi ngaahi sima vai inu/cement water tanks cracked) 	Si'i vai inu/Lack of drinking water) Mahamahaki e kakai/Unhealthy community) Mole mo'ui(Loss of lives) 'Ikai lelei e ngaahi ngoue'anga/Bush allotments not productive) Fieinua fanga monumanu/Livestock go thirsty)	3	3	3	 Kole tokoni/Seek assistance) Feinga pa'anga/Raise funds) Monomono e sima vai/Repair cement water tanks) Fakatau tangike pelesitiki/Buy plastic water tanks) 	 Ma'u tokoni/Received assistance) Ma'u pa'anga/Received funds) Malu e ngaahi sima/Secured cement water tanks) Ma'u ngaahi tangike pelesitiki/Received plastic water tanks) 	 Mo'uilelei e famili/Healthy families in community/ Ma'a e vala fanau/Children have clean washed clothes/ Si'isi'i e puke e kakai/Less people getting sick/ Lahi e ngoue/Increased crops/ 	■ MORDI(Mainstreaming of Rural Development Innovation) ■ Rotamould(Rotamould) ■ TNCC ■ UN(United Nation) ■ Ausaid(Australian Aid)
5. 'IKAI LELEI 'AE NGAAHI TOILETI TONGA <i>(Poor and unhygienic</i> state of pit toilets)	'Ikai ha pa'anga(Lack of funds) Fakatupu mahaki(Causes diseases) Motu'a e ngaahi toilet(Old toilets) Popo e 'ato(Rusty roofs)	 'Uli 'atakai (Dirty envrioment) Mahaki'ia e famili (Unhealthy people in community) Mole mo'ui (Loss of lives) Lahi e lango (Attracts many flies) Mongomonga'ia (Attracts many cockaroaches) 	3	3	3	■ Feinga pa'anga/ <i>Raise funds)</i> ■ Kole tokoni <i>(Seek assistance)</i> ■ Ngaue fakataha kakai kolo <i>(Community working tagether)</i> ■ Langa e toileti palangi/ <i>Build flush toilets)</i>	Ma'u pa'anga <i>(Received funds)</i> Ma'u tokoni <i>(Received assistance)</i> 'lai kolo ngave fakataha <i>(Secured community working tagether)</i> 'lai toilet palangi <i>(Secured flush toilets)</i>	Ma'a 'atakai/Cleaner environment) Mo'uilelei kakai kolo(Healthy community) Si'i fetuku siemu 'ehe lango(Less germs and bacteria spread from flies) Faingofua ange ngaue'aki kauleka moe faingata'a'ia(Easier for children and elderly people to use flush toilets)	MORDI(Mainstreaming of Rural Development Innovation) TNCC UN(United Nation) PTH(Pacific Timber and Hardware) 'Ofisakolo(Town Officer)

SHEET 5 - MERGING OF GDP PRIORITY PROBLEMS TO DETERMINE CDP PRIORITIES

ГАКАНОКОНОКО 'О Е	PALOPALEMA FAKAKULUPU GENDER-SPECIFIC GROUPS (GD	P) PRIORITY PROBLEMS
WOMEN GROUP (KAKAI FEFINE)	YOUTH GROUP (TO'UTUPU)	MEN GROUP (KAKAI TANGATA)
1. Si'i tanaki'anga vai (Small water lens)	1. 'Ikai naunau sipoti (Lack sports gear and equipment)	Maumau fangamonumanu he ngaahi ngoue'anga moe kolo <i>)</i> (Livestock damage bush allotments)
2. Maumau fanga monumanu (Damage caused by livestock)	2. 'Ikai ha initaneti moe laipeli fakakolo (No library and internet for community to use)	2. 'IKAI HA ME'ANGAUE FAKANGOUE (PALAU MO NAUNAU) (Lack of tools and equipment for farming — tractor)
3. Si'i maama hala (Lack of street lights)	3. Si'i me'a fononga kihe ako (Lack of transportation to school)	3. 'IKAI SAI TU'UNGA 'OE NGAAHI PEITO LOLOTONGA (Poor standard of kitchen)
4. Lahi ta'e fakafiemalie ngaahi peito (Increased unsatisfactory kitchen standard)	4. Vaoa kolo (Community have overgrown grass and weed)	4. SI'ISI'I PEA MAUMAU TANAKI'ANGA VAI INU (SIMA VAI) (Water filters damaged and lack of drinking water)
5. 'Ikai sai hala ngove mo kolo (Poor public road construction and road to farm)	5. Maumau fanga monumanu (Damage caused by livestock)	5. 'Ikai lelei 'ae ngaahi toileti tonga (Poor and unhygienic state of pit toilets)

SHEET 6: SUMMARY OF SET CDP PRIORITIES

Prob.	Fakahokohoko Palopalema fakakolo	RANKING ORDER AS PER GENDER-SPECIFIC GROUP, WITH TOTAL SCORE				
no.	Gender-specific groups CDP Priority problems	Women	Youth	Men	Score	
1.	Maumau fangamonumanu he ngaahi ngoue'anga moe kolo (damage caused by livestock)	2	5	1	8	
2.	Si'isi'i pea maumau tanaki'anga vai inu (sima vai) (water filters damaged and lack of drinking water)	1	х	4	5	
3.	Ta'e fakafiemalie pea 'ikai sai tu'unga 'oku 'iai ngaahi peito (current condition of kitchens is unsatisfactory)	4	х	3	7	
4.	Si'i maama hala (lack of street lights)	3	x	x	3	
5.	'Ikai sai hala ngove mo kolo (poor public road construction and road to farm)	5	х	x	5	
6.	'Ikai naunau sipoti (lack of sports gear and equipment)	х	1	х	1	
7.	'Ikai ha initaneti moe laipeli fakakolo (lack of internet and library for community to use)	х	2	x	2	
8.	Si'i me'a fononga kihe ako (lack of transportation to school)	х	3	х	3	
9.	Vaoa kolo (community have overgrown grass and weed)	х	4	х	4	
10.	'Ikai ha me'angave fakangove (palav mo navnav) (lack of tools and equipment for farming — tractor)	х	х	2	2	
11.	'Ikai lelei 'ae ngaahi toileti tonga (Poor and unhygienic state of pit toilets)	х	х	5	5	

SHEET 7: TOULA COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2015 \sim 2017

Lisi palopalema fakahokohoko (List of problem prioritized)	Ngaahi me'a 'oku ne fakatupuga <i>(Causes)</i>	Faingamalie ke hoko (Risk analysis)	Ngaahi Solova'anga (Solutions)	Ngaahi Me'a 'e hoko (Possible Output)	Ngaahi Ola (Possible Outcome)	Kaunga ngave (Partners)
1. Maumau fangamonumanu he ngaahi ngoue'anga moe kolo <i>(Damage caused by livestock)</i>	" 'Ikai ha 'a ngoue mo 'a puaka/Lack of crop and pigs) " Si'isi'i ivi fakapa'anga/Lack of funds) " 'Ikai ke fafanga/Livestock not fed) " 'Ikai ha 'a lelei/Lack proper fence for livestock) " Fakataka monumanu/Free livestock roaming) " 'Ikai ha maea ke nono'o 'aki/No rope to tie up livestock) " Fu'u tokolahi pe/Too many livestock) " Fiekaia fanga manu/Livestock gone hungry)	Kaiha'a (Theft) Fiekaia e ngaahi famili/Families gone hungry) To lalo e tu'unga fakapa'anga ngaahi famili/Families financial status decreased) Ke'a e kakai/Qurrels amongst people in the community) Honge e kolo/Lack of staple food in community) 'Uli 'atakai/Dirty environment) Palaku kihe kau 'a'ahi/Untidy for village inspection) Mahamahaki kakai kolo/Unhealthy community) Maumau ngoue'anga/Damaged bush allotments) Maumau e hala pule'anga/Damaged public roads) Matamata kovi e kolo/Town appearance is untidy)	Ngaahi 'a puaka moe pulu/Fix fence for pig and cow) Feinga pa'anga(Raise funds) Kole tokoni (Seek assistance) Ngaue fakataha kakai kolo (Community work together) Ha'i fanga monumanu (Tie up livestock) Kumi ha maea lelei(Buy stirdy rope) Ngaahi ha 'a lelei(Fix proper livestock fence) Fakatokosi'i fanga monumanu(Lessen number of livestock) 'Aa'i 'u 'api kolo(Build fence around town allotments) Kole tokoni uaea 'a(Seek assistance for fence wire) Fakamalohi'i lao kihe fanga monumanu(Strongly enforce policy regarding livestock)	*Ma'u 'a puaka moe 'a pulu/Receive fence for pig and cow) *Ma'u pa'anga/Receive funds) *Ma'u tokoni /Received assistance) *'lai kolo ngaue fakataha/Secured community working together) *'lai fanga monumanu 'oku ha'i lelei/Secured livestock tied up properly) *'lai maea ke nono'o 'aki/Secured rope to tie up livestock) *'lai ngaahi 'a lelei/Secureproperfence) *'lai fanga monumanu kuo fakatokosi'l /Secured livestock lessened) *'lai ngaahi 'a 'api kolo/Securedfence for town allotment) *'lai tokoni uaea/Secured assistance for wire) *Ma'u pa'anga/Received funds) *'lai lo kuo ngaue lelei/secured effective community policies)	* Mahu e me'a tokoni (Abundance of staple food) * 'Ikai toe 'iai ha kaiha'a (No more staaling) * Lahi e fu'u ngoue 'oku too(Increased crops planted) * Makona e ngaahi famili(Families a full and well fed) * Ma'u moe pa'anga 'ae ngaahi famili(Families receive revenue) * Lelei tu'unga faka'ekonomika e kolo(Community economic status improved) * Faka'ofo'ofa ange kolo(Community appearance is more appealing) * Ma'a kihe 'a'ahi(Community is clean for village inspection) * Leleiange ngoue(Improved crop production) * Lelei 'ae maketi(Improved market) * Si'i ha toe honge(Less famine of staple food) * Malu fakame'atokoni 'a e ngaahi famili (Families have staple food to eat) * Ma'a 'atakai(Clean environment) * Ma'a 'atakai(Clean environment) * Ma'a 'atakai (Clean environment) * Ma'a 'atakai (Clean environment) * Ma'u ielei kakai (Healthy community) * Lahi ngoue kihe maketi(Increased crops sold at market)	■ MORDI(Mainstreaming of Rural Development Innovation) ■ MAFFF (Ministry of Agriculture Food Fisheries and Forestry) ■ UN (United Nation) ■ TNCC ■ Kolo (Community) ■ PTH (Pacific Timber and Hardware) ■ Tonga Trust (Tonga Trust) ■ Fakafofonga falealea (Parliament representative) ■ 'Ofisakolo (Town officer)
2. Si'isi'i pea maumau tanaki'anga vai inu (sima vai)/Water filters damaged and lack of drinking water)	 Hala sima ngaahi 'api ni'ihi e sima vai(Some homes lack cement water tanks) Motv'a ngaahi sima vai(Old cement water tank) Mafahifahi ngaahi sima vai inu(Cement drink water tanks craked) Si'i ivi fakapa'anga(Lack of funds) Lahi maumau(Increased damages) Fakatamulu hono ngaahi(Cement water tank not properly built) Mama he lahi la'a(Cement water tank leakages due to overexposure to sunlight) 	Si'i vai inu/Lack of drinking water) Mahamahaki e kakai/Unhealthy community) Mole mo'ui (Loss of lives) 'Ikai lelei e ngaahi ngove'anga/Bush allotments not productive) Fieinua fanga monumanu/Thirsty livestock) Fieinua(Thirsty) Mohe'uli (Lack of proper baths) 'Uli vala/Dirty unwashed clothes)	■ Kole tokoni <i>(Seek assistance)</i> ■ Feinga pa'anga <i>(Raise funds)</i> ■ Monomono ngaahi sima mama <i>(Repair and mend leaking cement water tanks)</i> ■ Kumi ngaahi tangike pelesitiki <i>(Buy plastic water tanks)</i>	■ Ma'u tokoni (Received assistance) ■ Ma'u pa'anga(Received funds) ■ Ma'u sima kuo 'osi monomono(Received cement water tank that has been repaired and mended) ■ Ma'u ngaahi tangike pelesitiki(Received plastic water tanks)	 Mo'uilelei e famili(Healthy families) Ma'a e vala fanau(Clean clothes for children) Si'isi'i e puke e kakai(Less people getting sick) Lahi e ngoue (Increased crop production) Fiemalie kakai (Community satisfied) Ma'a ange vai inu(Cleaner drinking water) Mo'ui lelei ngoue moe fanga monumanu(Healthy crops and livestock) Mahu fonua(Abundance of staple food) 	Rotamould/Rotamould) TNCC UN/United Nation) Ausaid/Australian Aid) MORDI/Mainstreaming of Rural Development Innovation) Fakafofonga falealea/Parliament representative) Pule fakavahe/District officer) Cofficer) Kakai kolo/Town officer) Kainga mei muli/Overseas relatives)

3. Ta'e fakafiemalie pea 'ikai sai tu'unga 'oku 'iai ngaahi peito (Current condition of kitchens is unsatisfactory)	■ Lahi fakatamaki fakaenatula (Increased natural disasters) ■ Motu'a e kapa (Old tin roofs) ■ Si'i ivi fakapa'anga/Lack of funds) ■ Mamafa naunau falekoloa/Products from stores too costly) ■ 'Ikai ha peito lelei/Lack proper kitchen) ■ Tutulu/Leaking roof) ■ Avaava/Roofs with holes) ■ Peito palepale pe/Tent kitchen)	Mate (Mortality) Faingata'a e feime'atokoni (Difficult making food) 'Uli me'a tokoni hono ngaohi(Process of making food is dirty) Mahamahaki kihe kakai(Unhealthy community) 'Uheina la'aina mo efua kau feime'atokoni(People doing the cooking suffers rain, sun and dust blown from wind) Velahia (Hot from cooking under the sun) Maumau'i fanga monumanu me'akai mo 'uli'i me'a ngaahikai(Livestock damagefood and creates dirty mess iin cooking area)	Kole tokoni/Seel assistance) Feinga pa'anga(Raise funds) Ngaue fakataha kolo(Community working together) Langa ha peito palangi (Build modern type kitchen) Langa ha peito fakalakalaka(Build a more developed kitchen)	"'lai kolo ngave fakataha <i>(Secured community working together)</i> "Ma'u pa'anga <i>(Received funds)</i> "Ma'u tokoni <i>(Received assistance)</i> "'lai peito fakalakalaka <i>(Secured developed kitchen)</i>	 Mo'uilelei ange kakai (Healthier people/community) Ma'a 'atakai (Clean environment) Faingofua feime'atokoni(Convenient cooking area) 'Ikai toe mole ha mo'ui(No more loss of lives) Ma'a feime'atokoni(Making of food is clean and hygienic) Malu mo hao kau feime'atokoni meihe la'a 'uha moe 'ahuina(Sheltered from cooking under the sun and rain) Malu me'atokoni moe me'a ngaahi kai meihe fanga monumanu(Food and cooking area safe from livestock) 	MORDI (Mainstreaming of Rural Development Innovation) Tonga Trust (Tonga Trust) TNCC PTH(Pacific Timber and Hardware) EM Jones (EM Jones) MIA(Ministry of Internal Affairs) 'Ofisakolo(Town officer) Fakafofonga falealea(Parliament representative)
4. Si'i maama hala (Lack of street lights)	*Si'i maama hala (Lack of street lights) *Si'i ivi fakapa'anga (Lack of funds) *Ikai ha maama (No street lights) *Ikai ha tokoni (Lack of assistance) *Si'i tokanga 'a e Potungaue 'Uhila (Electricity power board lack paying attention to regular check ups on street lights)	Lahi e tevolo (Increased fear of evil spirits) Fakapo'uli e kolo (Darkness in the community) Kovi fefononga'aki (Poor means of transportation) 'Ikai malu longa'ifanau fononga holo he po'uli (Children not safe traveling at night in the darkness) Lahi kaiha'a (Increased theft rate)	Feinga pa'anga (Raise funds) Kole tokoni (Seek assistance) Ngaue fakataha e kolo (Community working together) Fokotu'u ha maama hala (Install street lights)	= Ma'u pa'anga (Receive funds) = Ma'u tokoni (Received assistance) = 'lai kolo ngaue fakataha (Secured community working together) = 'lai maama hala(Secured street lights)	Si'i Malu e fonua (Safe community)kaiha'a Lele Malu e fanau (Children are safe) 'Ikai toe ilifia tevolo kakai (People not scared of evil spirits anymore) Si'i hoko ha fakatamaki kihe longa'ifanau (Less danger and harm occurring to children) Si'i kaiha'a (Less theft) Lelei fefononga'aki (Improved means of transportation) fefononga'aki	MORDI/Mainstreaming of Rural Development Innovation) 'Ofisakolo/Town officer) Pule fakavahe/District officer)
5. 'ikai sai hala ngove mo kolo (Poor public road construction and road to farm)	Lahi 'uha (Increased rainfall) Si'i ivi fakapa'anga(Lack of funds) 'lkai ha me'angave (Lack of equipments) Te'eki tanu fakalelei mo valita(Roads not yet gravel and tar filled)	Tokakovi (Rocky road) Honge (Lack of staple food) Kovi fefononga'aki (Poor means of transportation) Maumau vave me'alele (Cuses damage to car) Honge fonua (Lack of staple food in community) Si'i ngoue (Lack crop) Kovi maketi (Bad business at market)	Tanu e hala pea valita/Gravel and tar fill roads) Feinga pa'anga/Raise funds) Kole tokoni (Seek assistance) Fakatau me'a ngave (Buy equipments and tools for road construction)	" 'lai hala lelei(Secured good public road) " Ma'u pa'anga(Received funds) " 'lai tokoni(Secured assistance) " 'lai me'a ngave(Secured tools and equipment for road work)	Sai e hala (Betterand improved road construction) Fiemalie kakai fefononga'aki (Peopleable to travel with ease) Tolonga ngaahi me'alele (Cars last longer) Faka'ofo'ofa kolo (Clean and beautiful community) Lahi ngoue 'oku to (Increased crops planted) Lelei maketi (Improved market) Lelei ange tu'unga fakapa'anga ngaahi famili (Improved financial status)	MORDI/Mainstreaming of Rural Development Innovation,MOI/Ministry of Infrastructure) Kainga muli/Overseas relatives) 'Ofisakolo/Town officer) Pule fakavahe/District officer)
6. 'Ikai naunau sipoti (Lack of sports gear and equipment)	■Si'i ivi fakapa'anga/Lack of funds) ■'Ikai ha taukei fe'unga (Not experienced enough) ■ Mamafa koloa(Sports gear too costly) ■ Vaivai komiti(Weak sports committee) ■'Ikai ngaue fakataha kolo/Community not working together)	Lavea (Injuries) Motuhia taleniti (Lack sport skills) Mahamahaki kakai (Unhealthy community) Lahi 'alu to'utupu (Too many youth leaving) Fakakina he kolo (Youth causing nuisance in community)	Kumi naunau (Buy sports gear and equipment) Ngaue fakataha kolo (Community work together) Kole tokoni (Seek assistance) Feinga pa'anga (Raise funds) Fakamalohi'i komiti ke longomo'ui (Encourage proactive sports committee)	Ma'u pa'anga (Receive funds) Ma'u naunau (Receive sports gear and equipment) Ma'u tokoni (Received assistance) 'lai kolo ngaue fakataha (Secureda community that works together) 'lai komiti ngaue longomo'ui (Secured	Mo'ui lelei kolo (Healthy community) Faingamalie to'utupu ki muli (Youth have opportunity to play sports in overseas) Lelei taleniti fanau (Improved sports talent) Tu'umalie kakai (Wealthy community) Lelei tu'unga faka'ekonomika (Improved economic status)	Folau'eve'eva(Tourism) MORDI(Mainstreaming of Rural Development Innovation) TASA(Tonga Amateur Sports Association) FIFA(Federation Internationale football Association) MIA(Ministry of Internal Affairs) Fakafofonga falealea(Parliament representative)

						TNYC(Tonga National Youth Congress)
7. 'ikai ha initaneti moe laipeli fakakolo <i>(Lack of internet and</i> <i>library for community to use)</i>	Mamafa naunau (Expensive equipment) Si'i ivi fakapa'anga (Lack of funds) 'Ikai ha tokoni (Lack of assistance) 'Ikai ha feitu'u lelei (Lack proper location for internet and library)	Luhi fukumole (Increased spenditure on internet and books) Tomui IA funau(Students hand in late assignments) Kovi fekumi 'a e funau (Students cannot do their assisgnment research properly) Uesia 'enau ako (Students studies are affected)	Feinga pa'anga (Raise funds) Kole tokoni (Seek assistance) Kumi naunau laipeli (Buy library equipment) Kumi naunau internet (Buy internet equipment) Fokotu'u laipeli mo initaneti (Establish library and internet for community to use)	 'lai pa'anga (Secured funds) Ma'u tokoni (Received assistance) Ma'u naunau laipeli mo internet (Received library and internet equipment) 	Poto mo lahi 'ilo (Gain more knowledge and understanding) Faignogua ako fanau (Studies made more accessible for students) Si'i fakamole (Less spending) Faingofua fetu'utaki (Communicatin made more accessable) Lelei ange ako fanau (Students improve in their studies) Leleiange kaha'u e fanau (Students have ensured bright future)	TCC(Tonga Communication Cooperation) MORDI/Mainstreaming of Rural Development Innovation) OE(Office Equipment) Fakatofonga falealea(Parliament representative) Potungaue Ako (Ministry of Education) AusAid(Australian Aid) NZAid(New Zealand Aid)
8. Si'i me'a fononga kihe ako (Lack of transportation to school)	■ Si'i ivi fakapa'anga (Lack of funds) ■ Mamafa (Too costly) ■ 'Ikai matauhi lelei pasi taimini (Not taking proper care of bus) ■ Motu'a pasi (Old bus) ■ Vaivai pe komiti sikolasipi (Weak scholarship committee)	Tomui fanau kihe ako (Students suffer being late to school) Lahi e li'aki ako (Increased rate of students staying from school) Lahi e ngaue mo'ua (Increased number of students doing detension) Tuli e fanau he ako (Students get expelled from school) Mahamahaki (Unhealthy community) Mate fanau (Youth mortality)	Feinga pa'anga (Raise funds) Ngaue fakataha kolo (Community working together) Kole tokoni (Seek assistance) Kumi pasi fo'ou (Buy new bus) Sevesi 'ae pasi motu'a (Service old bus)	■ Ma'u pa'anga (Received funds) ■ Ma'u tokoni (Received assistance) ■ Ma'u pasi ako (Received new school bus) ■ 'lai pasi kuo sevesi lelei (Secured bus that has been properly serviced)	Leleiange ako fanau (Students improve in their studies) Ma'u honau kaha'u lelei (Receive better future) Tu'umalie ngaahi famili (Wealthy families) Si'iange fakakina (Less trouble and nuisance caused) Lelei 'enau ma'u ako (Improved school attendance) Ola lelei ai pe ako 'ae fanau (Better and improved school results)	Super Cheap(Super Cheap) Youth(Youth) Pule'anga(Government) Kakai kolo Kainga 'i muli(Overseas relatives) 'Ofisakolo(Town officer)
9. Vaoa kolo <i>(Community have</i> overgrown grass and weed)	 'Ikai ha misni kosi mo me'angave (lack lawn mower and other equipment to cut grass) Si'i ivi fakapa'anga (Lack of funds) Mamafa koloa (Equipment too costly) Lahi 'api 'oku li'aki (Land allotments abandoned) 	■ 'Uli 'atakai <i>(Dirty environment)</i> ■ Namua <i>(Mosquitos)</i> ■ Mahamahaki kakai <i>(Unhealthy community)</i> ■ 'Ikai toe manakoa 'ehe folau'eve'eva <i>(Becomes unpopular with tourists)</i>	Ngave fakataha kolo (Community working together) Kumi ha misini kosi mo me'angave (Buy lawn mower) Feinga pa'anga (Raise funds) Kole tokoni misini kosi mo palau pea moe kini (Seek assistance for lawn mower and tractor)	Ma'u kolo ngaue fakataha (Secure community working together) 'lai misini kosi mo me'angaue (Secured lawn mower and other grass cutting equipment) 'lai pa'anga (Received funds) 'lai tokoni palau mo kini (Secured tractor)	Faka'ofo'ofa kolo (Clean and beautiful community) Mo'uilelei kakai (Healthy community) Manakoa 'ehe folau'eve'eva (Popular with the tourists) Faingofua mo vaveange ngaue (Easy and fast for work or farming)	PTH(Pacific Timber and Hardware) MORDI(Mainstreaming of Rural Development Innovation) Fakafofonga falealea(Parliament representative) 'Atakai Kakai kolo(Community) Civil Society
10. 'Ikai ha me'angaue fakangoue (PALAU MO NAUNAU) (Lack of tools and equipment for farming — tractor)	■Si'isi'i ivi fakapa'anga (Lack of funds) ■'Ikai ha palau mo naunau (Lack of tractor and farming equipment)	Si'i ngoue (Lack of crop) Si'i ma'u'anga pa'anga (Lack source of income) Honge (Lack of staple foods) Fiekaia (Community go hungry	Kole ha tokoni (Seek assistance) Feinga pa'anga (Raise funds) Ngaue fakataha e kolo (Community working together) Fakatau ha palau moha naunau (taulani) (Buy tractor and similar farming equipment)	Ma'u tokoni (Received assistance) Ma'u pa'anga (Received funds) I lai kolo ngaue fakataha (Secured community working togetether) I lai palau mo naunau mo taulani (Secured tractor and other equipment with trailor)	■ Lahi e ngove (Increased crop) ■ Sai tu'unga fakapa'anga (Improved financial status) ■ Ma'ama'a e totongi palau (Price for tractor is affordable)	MORDI(Mainstreaming of Rural Development Innovation) UN(United Nation) AusAid(Australian Aid) Kakai kolo(Community) 'Ofisakolo(Town officer)
11. 'Ikai lelei 'ae ngaahi toileti tonga <i>(Poor and unhygienic</i> state of pit toilets)	 'Ikai ha pa'anga (Lack of funds) Fakatupu mahaki (Causes diseases) Motu'a e ngaahi toilet (Old toilets) Popo e 'ato (Rusty roofs) 	'Uli 'atakai (Dirty envrioment) Mahaki'ia e famili (Unhealthy people in community) Mole mo'ui (Loss of lives) Lahi e lango (Attracts many flies) Mongomonga'ia (Attracts many cockaroaches) Faingata'a ke ngaue'aki 'ehe kauleka moe vaivai (Not easy for young children and elderly people to use)	■ Feinga pa'anga (<i>Raise funds</i>) ■ Kole tokoni (<i>Seek assistance</i>) ■ Ngave fakataha kakai kolo (<i>Community working tagether</i>) ■ Langa e toileti palangi (<i>Build flush toilets</i>)	Ma'u pa'anga (Received funds) Ma'u tokoni (Received assistance) 'lai kolo ngaue fakataha (Secured community working together) 'lai toilet palangi (Secured flush toilets)	Ma'a 'atakai (Cleaner environment) Mo'vilelei kakai kolo (Healthy community) Si'i fetuku siemu 'ehe lango(Less germs and bacteria spread from flies) Faingofua ange ngave'aki kauleka moe faingata'a'ia (Easier for children and elderly people to use flush toilets)	MORDI(Mainstreaming of Rural Development Innovation) TNCC UN(United Nation) PTH(Pacific Timber and Hardware) 'Ofisakolo(Town officer) Ausaid (Australian Aid)

SHEET 8: PARTICIPANTS LIST

WOMEN	YOUTH	MEN		
1. Mele Sikalu	1. Kathy Moala	1. Sione 'Aketi		
2. Lutoloni Vaha'i	2. Alavina Maile	2. Sione Tupou		
3. Pivela Liku	3. Peta Maile	3. Manu Moala		
4. Foulata Manukia	4. Fine Havea	4. Taa'i Saluni		
5. Va'inga Sitani Tualau	5. Silia Afa	5. Havili 'Ahoafi		
6. Tanoa Pangai	6. Malia Vea	6. Sitani Tualau		
7. Ane Kauhalaniva	7. Melenaite Liku	7. 'Alamoti Fa'uvao		
8. Melesungu Saluni	8. Kelenita Laloni	8. Ma'ake Mafi		
9. 'Elenoa Pangai	9. 'Okataina Kaita'eifo	9. Fono Faifekau (FWC)		
10. Taveli Lamipeti	10. Fatai Filo	10. Sinamoni Havea		
11. Popua Sikalu	11. ALisi Vea	11. Sikaleti Loketi		
12. Seini Moala	12. Tina Kaita'eifo	12. Paea Sikalu		
13. Ane Liku	13. Uaite Lose Tonga'uiha	13. Kavamone To'ia		
14. Ilaisaane Tahitu'a	14. Poketi Moala	14. 'Eti Moala		
15. Toatepi Tepi	15. Silia Vea	15. Fe'ofa'aki 'Ete'aki		
16. Mileti Hopoate	16. Tina Telefoni	16. 'Alavini Vea ('Ofisakolo)		
17. Mafi Sikalu	17. Haisingi Teu	17. Soeli Ngu		
18. Haitelenisia Savelio	18. Seletute Tapueluelu	18. Folau Loketi		
19. Malia Tapueluelu	19. Kitione Vailea	19. Viliami Filo		
20. Sesilia Sikaleti	20. Heamoni Lamipeti	20. Mone Alatau		
21. Line Moala	21. Tonga Havea	21. Lotu Sikalu		
22. Mele Taufa Vea	22. Tomasi Tonga	22. Mino Sikalu		
23. 'Amelia Chandra	23. Ponasi Tonga	23. Tioni Loketi		
24. Sinamoni To'ia	24. Havea Moala	24. Paula To'ia		
25. 'Ilaise Liku	25. Siva Sikalv	25. Paea Moala		
26. Laumanu Kaita'eifo	26. Pesa Tu'a	26. Tino Ngu		
27. Soana Filo	27. Richie Moala			
28. 'Akanesi Filo	28. Sinamoni Hafoka			
29. Tilila Moala	29. Lotini Shanra			
30. 'Alisi Pangai	30. Sinito Tapueluelu			
31. Mele Havea	31. Milika Moala			
32. 'Akosita Fe'ilo'eua	32. Vika Moala			
33. Salama Faletau	33. Sione Tu'a			
34. Masina Faletau	34. Hevila To'ia			
35. Mele Kaita'eifo	35. Liku Maile			
	36. Sinito Tapueluelu			
	37. Kafo'atu Tahitu'a			
	38. Paita Laloni			
	39. Tesi Moni			
	40. 'Aisea Saluni			



Ministry of Internal Affairs, Taufa'ahau Rd, Nuku'alofa, KINGDOM OF TONGA

P: (+676) 28 976 M: (+676) 7747408 E: <u>faanunu.st@gmail.com</u>